
Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District 

Board Meeting Access Information 

Join the meeting from your computer, tablet smartphone:     https://meet.goto.com/lwwsd/boardmeeting 

You can also dial in using your phone.      

Call:  +1 (224) 501-3412     Access Code: 596-307-141 Press *6 to mute/unmute your microphone  
 

New to GoToMeeting? Get the app now and be ready when the meeting starts:      

https://meet.goto.com/install 

Wed February 14, 2024 

6:30 - 7:30 pm 
Next Meeting: 

Page 1 of 206

https://meet.goto.com/lwwsd/boardmeeting
tel:+12245013412
https://meet.goto.com/install


 

 
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
AGENDA 

February 14, 2024 
6:30 p.m. – Regular Session 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER 
 
2. ROLL CALL 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY 

At this time, members of the public may address the Board of Commissioners. Please 
state your name and address prior to making comments, and limit your comments to 
three minutes. For the sake of time, each public comment period will be limited to 45 
minutes. 

 
4. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CHANGES TO THE AGENDA 
 
5. CONSENT AGENDA 
 
6. SPECIFIC ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

A. Whatcom County Comprehensive Plan Update Discussion 
 
7. OTHER BUSINESS 
 
8. STAFF REPORTS 

A. General Manager 
 
9. PUBLIC COMMENT OPPORTUNITY 
 
10. ADJOURNMENT 

Page 2 of 206



 

  
 

Consent Agenda 
 

DATE SUBMITTED:  February 8, 2024 MEETING DATE: February 14, 2024 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Rachael Hope 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 1. See below 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONA
L/OTHER 

 

**TO BE UPDATED 02.14.2024** 
 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 

• Minutes for the 01.10.2024 Regular Board Meeting 
• Payroll for Pay Period #3 (01.20.2024 through 02.02.2024) totaling $50,049.75 
• Benefits for Pay Period #1 totaling $55,708.27 
• Accounts Payable Vouchers total to be added 

 
FISCAL IMPACT 
Fiscal impact is as indicated in the payroll/benefits/accounts payable quantities 
defined above. All costs are within the Board-approved 2023-2024 Budget. 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
Staff recommends the Board approve the Consent Agenda. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
A recommended motion is: 

“I move to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.” 
 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 5 

Page 3 of 206



Meeting Minutes January 31, 2024 P a g e  | 1 

 

  
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

1220 Lakeway Drive 
Bellingham, WA  98229 

 

 
REGULAR SESSION OF THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 

Minutes 
 

January 31, 2024 
 

Board President Todd Citron called the Regular Session to order at 8:00 a.m.  
 
Attendees: Commissioner Todd Citron (v) General Manager Justin Clary 
 Commissioner John Carter (v) Engineering Manager Greg Nicoll 
 Commissioner Bruce Ford Finance Manager Jenny Signs 
 Commissioner Jeff Knakal (v) Operations Manager Jason Dahlstrom 
 Commissioner David Holland (v) Recording Secretary Rachael Hope 
          
Also in attendance were: 

• Ken Zangari, District Electrician & AFSCME Local 114 WD President 
• Kevin Cook, District Water Treatment Plant Operator & AFSCME Local 114 WD Vice President 
• Ross Ardrey, NW Management Consulting LLC 

 
Attendees noted with a (v) attended the meeting virtually. 
 
Change to Agenda 
Clary recommended removing Item 6.C. Effective Utility Management Assessment from today’s 
agenda. The Board agreed.  
 
Consent Agenda 
 

Action Taken 
Knakal moved, Holland seconded, approval of: 

• Minutes for the 01.10.2024 Regular Board Meeting 
• Minutes for the 01.10.2024 Special Board Meeting (Work Session) 
• Payroll for Pay Period #2 (01.06.2024 through 01.19.2024) totaling $51,591.59 
• Benefits for Pay Period #1 totaling $56,470.64 
• 4th Quarter 2023 Payroll Taxes totaling $12,892.58 
• Accounts Payable Vouchers totaling $177,557.62 

Motion passed. 
 
Compensation Philosophy Discussion 
Clary explained that the total compensation package offered to District employees (e.g.,  
salary, benefits, professional development opportunities) is a key component to promoting employee 
retention (which, in turn, is critical to maintaining institutional knowledge). In regular meetings over 

Page 4 of 206



Meeting Minutes January 31, 2024 P a g e  | 2 

the last few years, the Board has discussed the development of a formal compensation philosophy for 
the District. A compensation philosophy establishes agreed upon principles that guide how 
compensation is administered. While the District has not previously adopted a formal compensation 
philosophy, it has through board action adopted compensation policies that in aggregate may be 
considered to form a philosophy, including the salary matrix, benefits package, cost of living 
adjustments, and salary studies. 
 
With the current collective bargaining agreement (CBA) between the District and AFSCME set to expire 
December 31, the 2023-24 Budget includes funding to conduct a total compensation study this spring 
as a means of facilitating negotiations of a successor CBA. The District has contracted with NW 
Management Consulting LLC to assist in the completion of the study. To facilitate and guide study 
development, a board discussion on the District’s compensation philosophy and priority areas is 
beneficial. 
 
Clary presented the Board with a summary of adopted policies and various compensation policy 
considerations, including pros and cons of the salary matrix, level of benefit contributions, cost of 
living allowance, and market competitiveness. Discussion followed, including contributions from 
Ross Ardrey of NW Management Consulting and District Employees/AFSCME representatives Ken 
Zangari & Kevin Cook. 
 
Whatcom County Onsite Sewage System Inspection Program Revision Request 
Clary recalled that the potential impacts of onsite sewage systems (OSS; commonly referred to as 
septic systems) within the Lake Whatcom Watershed has been an ongoing concern of the District for 
the past several years. Most recently the topic was discussed during a work session of the Board held 
on January 10, 2024. One outcome of the Board’s discussion was consideration of submittal of a 
request to the Whatcom County Council to eliminate self-inspection of OSS located in the watershed. 
Clary presented a letter for Board consideration. Discussion followed with the Board directing staff 
not to issue the letter until more information may be gathered regarding the status of the County’s 
current OSS compliance monitoring program. 
 
General Manager’s Report 
Clary updated the Board on several topics, including a recent meeting with Sudden Valley Community 
Association management for upcoming project coordination, his attendance at recent Public Works 
Board day at the hill, which included meetings with 14 different Washington State legislators, and an 
upcoming WRIA adjudication webinar. Discussion followed. 
 
Engineering Department Report 
Nicoll highlighted several projects, highlighting the development of a new format for the monthly 
capital projects report, and giving updates on the Chlorine Contact Basin Replacement project and 
grant agreement, a well-attended pre bid meeting for the Division 7 Reservoir Replacement Project, 
and water system lead service line inventory progress. Discussion followed. 
 
Finance Department Report 
Signs highlighted the 4th quarter 2023 financial report, focusing on changes in policy and procedures. 
She also called attention to recent progress relating to the District’s FEMA and Hazard Mitigation 
Grants, and changes to the District’s investment strategy for long term investments. Discussion 
followed. 
 

Page 5 of 206



Meeting Minutes January 31, 2024 P a g e  | 3 

Operations & Maintenance Department Report 
Dahlstrom reported on field crew operations, including highlights of the provided strategic business 
plan update from an O&M perspective, implementation of a new system tool to optimize operations at 
the Sudden Valley Water Treatment Plant, and coming updates to the District’s sewer camera 
capabilities. Commissioner Ford requested an update on the Midnight Court sewer line in which the 
crew found a concrete-like blockage, and Dahlstrom reported that the crew is currently performing 
monthly inspections while a permanent solution is developed. Discussion followed.  
 
With no further business, Citron adjourned the regular session at 10:09 a.m. 
 
 
 
    ________    
Board President, Todd Citron    
 
 
 
Attest:              

Recording Secretary, Rachael Hope       
 
Minutes approved by motion at  Regular  Special Board Meeting on ________________________  

Page 6 of 206



Page 7 of 206



Page 8 of 206



Page 9 of 206



 

 Whatcom County 
Comprehensive Plan 

Update Discussion 
DATE SUBMITTED:  February 7, 2024 MEETING DATE: February 14, 2024 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 

1. Chapter 2, Land Use, Whatcom Co. 
Comprehensive Plan 

2. Chapter 4, Capital Facilities, Whatcom 
Co. Comprehensive Plan 

3. Chapter 5, Utilities, Whatcom Co. 
Comprehensive Plan 

4. Chapter 10, Environment, Whatcom Co. 
Comprehensive Plan 

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONAL
/OTHER 

 

 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
The Growth Management Act (GMA) is a series of Washington State statutes, first 
adopted in 1990, that requires fast-growing cities and counties to develop a 
comprehensive plan to manage their population growth. The GMA is primarily codified 
under Chapter 36.70A of the Revised Code of Washington (RCW). The GMA 
establishes 13 goals (urban growth, reduce sprawl, efficient transportation, housing, 
economic development, property rights, timely permitting, enhance natural resource 
industries, enhance open space/recreation, protect the environment, public 
involvement, ensure adequate public facilities and services, and historic preservation) 
that serve as a basis for all comprehensive plans (a fourteenth goal, shoreline 
management, is added under the Shoreline Management Act). 

Based upon its population and growth rate, Whatcom County is required to fully plan 
under the GMA. The GMA requires periodic review and update of comprehensive plans 
to ensure that counties and their cities and special purpose districts are adequately 
planning in accordance with current growth projections. The current Whatcom County 
Comprehensive Plan was adopted by the County Council in 2016. An update to the 
current comprehensive plan is required by June 30, 2025. To meet this deadline, the 
County is embarking on a review and update of the comprehensive plan. Of note, this 
update will include incorporation of several planning laws recently enacted by the 
state legislature and accommodation of Whatcom County Council Resolution No. 
2022-036, which establishes additional priorities for the plan update. 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 6.A 

Page 10 of 206

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=36.70A
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=90.58
https://www.whatcomcounty.us/1171/Current-Comprehensive-Plan
https://www.whatcomcounty.us/1171/Current-Comprehensive-Plan
https://documents.whatcomcounty.us/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=5003229&dbid=0&repo=WC&searchid=f1ccee95-1f5f-4264-9675-8cf07a48a9a8&cr=1
https://documents.whatcomcounty.us/WebLink/DocView.aspx?id=5003229&dbid=0&repo=WC&searchid=f1ccee95-1f5f-4264-9675-8cf07a48a9a8&cr=1


As an initial step, the County is soliciting comments from its public agency partners, 
including the District, on comprehensive planning policies for consideration of 
inclusion in the update. The County has requested agency comments by February 29, 
2024. 

As a provider of urban-level water and sewer service, District services overlap with 
planning policies defined in several chapters of the current comprehensive plan. 
District staff have reviewed sections of the comprehensive plan applicable to the 
District and offer the following to facilitate board discussion and development of 
comments, as the board may deem appropriate. 

Land Use (Chapter 2) 

Goal 2A. Ensure designation of sufficient land and densities, with consideration of 
water availability, to accommodate the growth needs of Whatcom County and protect 
the local economy, rural lifestyle, habitat, fish, and wildlife, which are the cornerstone 
qualities that make the county a desirable place to live. 

Policy 2A-12. Adoption of residential, industrial, and commercial comprehensive 
plan or zoning designations in rural areas must comply with the criteria for 
“limited areas of more intensive rural development” in the GMA (RCW 
36.70A.00(5). 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s continued designation of the 
Sudden Valley rural community as a LAMIRD. 

Goal 2D. Refine the regulatory system to ensure accomplishment of desired land use 
goals in a fair and equitable manner. 

Policy 2D-3. Streamline development regulations to eliminate unnecessary time 
delays. 
District Comment: The District encourages retention of this policy, coupled with 
the County’s allocation resources necessary to implement it. 

Goal 2N. Within Urban Growth Areas, outside present city limits, the County will 
maintain jurisdiction until annexation or incorporation of the property. During this 
interim period the following policies shall be in place to assure that the purposes of 
this plan and growth management are in fact accomplished. 

Policy 2N-4. Ensure that cites or other service providers do not extend sewer or 
urban levels of water service to serve areas outside urban growth areas except 
when necessary to protect basic public health and safety and the environment 
and when such services are financially supportable at zoned densities and do not 
permit urban development. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s retention of this policy to 
maintain compliance with the GMA and relevant case law. 

Goal 2U. Evaluate every eight years or as necessary Bellingham’s Urban Growth Area 
to determine if the UGA is sufficient in size to accommodate twenty-year growth 
projects, provide an adequate supply of affordable housing, industrial, commercial 

Page 11 of 206



and recreational development and recognize historical development patterns and 
commitments for service. 

Policy 2U-1. Consider new data, research and public participation when 
conducting UGA review. 
District Comment: Recognizing that the Geneva UGA has been identified as a 
Bellingham UGA since the original comprehensive plan without annexation, and 
that numerous public studies (the most recent of which was completed in 
partnership with the University of Washington’s Urban Design and Planning 
program in 2019) identified a general opposition to annexation, the District 
recommends removal of the UGA designation. 

Policy 2U-6. Whatcom County and Bellingham should continue to coordinate 
protection and development within the Watershed. 
District Comment: The District supports the continuation of County and City 
efforts to meet this policy through implementation of the Lake Whatcom 
Management Program. 

Goal 2EE. Ensure that rural areas are provided with services consistent with the rural 
character and that development patterns do not encourage an increased service level 
or degrade water quality. 

Policy 2EE-4. Prohibit extension or expansion of municipal public sewer system 
outside urban growth areas and LAMIRDs except where it is necessary to protect 
public health, safety and the environment, and when such services are financially 
supportable at rural densities and do not permit urban development. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s retention of this policy to 
maintain compliance with the GMA and relevant case law. 

Goal 2HH. Establish LAMIRD Designation Criteria. 
Policy 2HH-1.B. The following may serve as additional criteria for Rural 
Community designation: 2) Public services available to serve potential infill, such 
as adequate potable water and fire protection, transportation facilities, sewage 
disposal and stormwater control. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s retention of this policy 
recognizing consistency with District services provided to the Sudden Valley rural 
community. 

Goal 2JJ. Designate areas of more intensive rural development that existed on July 1, 
1990 as Rural Communities. 

District Comment: The District supports the County’s retention of Goal 2JJ and all 
associated policies recognizing that the Sudden Valley community existed on July 
1, 1990. 

Goal 2NN. Recognize Sudden Valley as a Rural Community (Type 1 LAMIRD) with 
unique challenges that require active participation in the planning process. 

Policy 2NN-6. Support Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District’s effort to 
maintain adequate sewer capacity and control stormwater runoff in keeping with 

Page 12 of 206



appropriate environmental controls and the Sudden Valley Community 
Association’s density reduction goal. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s retention of policy. 

Capital Facilities (Chapter 4) 

Goal 4G. Coordinate with non-county facility providers such as cities, school districts 
and other special purpose districts to support the future land use pattern promoted by 
this plan. 

Policy 4G-1. Establish interagency planning mechanisms to assure coordinated 
and mutually supportive capital facility plans from special districts, cities, and 
other major non-county facility providers which are consistent with this and other 
chapters of the comprehensive plan. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s leadership in continued and 
regular capital facility planning coordination amongst all service providers. 

Utilities (Chapter 5) 

Goal 5D. Minimize the time required for processing utilities permits. 
Policy 5D-1. Maintain streamlined and simplified permitting processes relating to 
installation of utility facilities designed to serve existing and approved 
development. 
District Comment: As an agency that is reliant on timely permitting to mitigate 
impacts to our ratepayers, the District supports the County’s pursuit of 
continuous improvement of its permitting processes. 

Goal 5F. Identify and remove impediments to effective siting of necessary utility 
facilities. 

Policy 5F-1. Periodically review existing regulations to identify and eliminate 
unintended or unreasonable constraints on the provision of necessary utilities as 
defined in this section. 
District Comment: The District supports retention of this important policy. 

Goal 5G. Support cost-effective conservation as a significant supply factor and 
implement policies that promote energy conservation measures. 

Policy 5G-4. Facilitate and encourage conservation of resources, in order to delay 
the need for additional facilities for electrical energy and water resources, and to 
maintain adopted air quality standards. 
District Comment: As the purveyor of potable water to approximately 10,000 
Whatcom County residents and partner in the Lake Whatcom Management 
Program, the District supports the County’s continued leadership in resource 
conservation. 

Goal 5J. Facilitate maintenance and rehabilitation of existing utility systems and 
facilities and encourage use of existing utility corridors. 

Page 13 of 206



Policy 5J-2. Promote, when reasonable and feasible, the co-location of new public 
and private utility distribution facilities in shared trenches/corridors, as well as 
coordination of construction timing. 
District Comment: The District encourages an increase in County leadership 
related to construction coordination amongst utility providers, including 
consideration of adopting a Dig-Once policy. 

Water Supply Narrative. 
District Comment: The reference to “Water District 10” in the fifth paragraph 
should be replaced with “the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District’s 
Eagleridge water system.” 

District Comment: The narrative should be updated to acknowledge the pending 
WRIA 1 adjudication. 

Goal 5P. Resolve county water issues through proactive participation in processes 
leading to a solution of water-related conflicts. 

Policy 5P-3. Discourage extension of urban levels of water service to areas not 
designated as urban growth areas or Rural Communities, except in those limited 
circumstances shown to be necessary to protect basic public health and safety 
and the environment and when such services are financially supportable at rural 
densities and do not permit urban development. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s retention of this policy to 
maintain compliance with the GMA and relevant case law. 

Goal 5Q. Work with water purveyors to provide service to all existing and designated 
urban growth or industrial areas. 

Policy 5Q-5. The County should work closely with purveyors and the State 
Department of Health in the development and review of Comprehensive Water 
Plans to ensure consistency with land use urban growth area needs. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s continued involvement in 
ensuring Comprehensive Water Plans are developed consistently with the 
Whatcom County Comprehensive Plan. 

Goal 5S. Reduce the incidence of on-site sewage treatment system failure through 
system management and enforcement of standards. 

Policy 5S-1. Support state on-site sewage system regulations (WAC 246-272) 
which requires that local health departments implement a program ensuring 
proper maintenance and operation for all on-site systems. 
District Comment: The District supports retention of this policy and encourages 
dedication of the necessary County resources to meet this obligation within the 
Lake Whatcom watershed. 

Policy 5S-2. The maintenance and operation program should be phased in 
beginning with high priority areas designated by the Couty Council. In 
implementing this policy, Lake Whatcom and Drayton Harbor are high priority 
areas. 

Page 14 of 206



District Comment: The District supports retention of this policy and encourages 
dedication of the necessary County resources to meet this obligation within the 
Lake Whatcom watershed. 

Goal 5T. Support development of new sewage treatment facilities, including new 
pipelines and extensions of existing pipelines, to areas designated for urban-level 
growth. 

Policy 5T-1. Discourage extension of sewer lines in areas not designated as urban 
growth areas or Rural Communities, except in those limited circumstances shown 
to be necessary to protect basic public health and safety and the environment and 
when such services are financially supportable at rural densities and do not 
permit urban development. 
District Comment: The District supports the County’s retention of this policy to 
maintain compliance with the GMA and relevant case law. 

Environment (Chapter 10) 

Goal 10D. Strengthen the sustainability of Whatcom County’s economy, natural 
environment, and built communities by responding and adapting to the impacts of 
climate change. 

Policy 10D-4. Promote the efficient use, conservation, and protection of water 
resources. 
District Comment: The District supports an increased focus on climate change 
resiliency within the comprehensive plan to comply with HB 1181 adopted during 
the 2023 session of the Washington State Legislature. 

Lake Whatcom Watershed Management Narrative (pg 10-22). 
District Comment: The fourth paragraph is outdated. The District recommends 
replacement with “Water and sewer service is provided throughout much of 
unincorporated portions of the watershed by the Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer 
District. The District operates three water systems: the South Shore system 
serving Geneva and Sudden Valley, and two smaller systems serving the 
Eagleridge and Agate Heights neighborhoods. The District collects and conveys 
wastewater generated in the watershed to the City of Bellingham for treatment at 
the City’s Post Point facility. The District’s sewage collection and conveyance 
system has the capacity to serve full build-out of Sudden Valley and Geneva.” 

Goal 10F. Protect and enhance water quantity and quality and promote sustainable 
and efficient use of water resources. 

Policy 10F-1. Maintain as a high priority the protection of water quality and 
quantity. 
District Comment: The District supports retention of this policy. 

Goal 10G. Protect and enhance Whatcom County’s surface water and groundwater 
quality and quantity for current and future generations. 

Policy 10G-1. Manage surface water systems on a watershed basis. 
District Comment: The District supports retention of this policy. 

Page 15 of 206



Goal 10I. Support water conservation, reclamation, reuse measures, and education 
as a means to ensure sufficient water supplies in the future. 

Policy 10I-1. Support and assist water users in the development of cost-effective 
means of improving efficiency of water use. 
District Comment: The District supports retention of this policy and encourages 
the County’s continued leadership in water conservation through active support of 
the Whatcom Water Alliance. 

Goal 10J. Prioritize the Lake Whatcom watershed as an area in which to minimize 
development, repair existing stormwater problems (specifically for phosphorus), and 
ensure forestry practices do not negatively impact water quality. Provide sufficient 
funding and support to be successful. 

Policies 10J-1 through -14. 
District Comment: The District supports the retention of all policies supporting 
Goal 10J. 

FISCAL IMPACT 
No fiscal impact is anticipated with the board’s discussion on this topic. 

APPLICABLE EFFECTIVE UTILITY MANAGEMENT ATTRIBUTE(S) 
Community Sustainability 
Water Resource Sustainability 
Stakeholder Understanding and Support 

RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
None. 

PROPOSED MOTION 
Not applicable. 

 

Page 16 of 206



Page 17 of 206



Page 18 of 206



Page 19 of 206



Page 20 of 206



Page 21 of 206



Page 22 of 206



Page 23 of 206



Page 24 of 206



Page 25 of 206



Page 26 of 206



Page 27 of 206



Page 28 of 206



Page 29 of 206



Page 30 of 206



Page 31 of 206



Page 32 of 206



Page 33 of 206



Page 34 of 206



Page 35 of 206



Page 36 of 206



Page 37 of 206



Page 38 of 206



Page 39 of 206



Page 40 of 206



Page 41 of 206



Page 42 of 206



Page 43 of 206



Page 44 of 206



Page 45 of 206



Page 46 of 206



Page 47 of 206



Page 48 of 206



Page 49 of 206



Page 50 of 206



Page 51 of 206



Page 52 of 206



Page 53 of 206



Page 54 of 206



Page 55 of 206



Page 56 of 206



Page 57 of 206



Page 58 of 206



Page 59 of 206



Page 60 of 206



Page 61 of 206



Page 62 of 206



Page 63 of 206



Page 64 of 206



Page 65 of 206



Page 66 of 206



Page 67 of 206



Page 68 of 206



Page 69 of 206



Page 70 of 206



Page 71 of 206



Page 72 of 206



Page 73 of 206



Page 74 of 206



Page 75 of 206



Page 76 of 206



Page 77 of 206



Page 78 of 206



Page 79 of 206



Page 80 of 206



Page 81 of 206



Page 82 of 206



Page 83 of 206



Page 84 of 206



Page 85 of 206



Page 86 of 206



Page 87 of 206



Page 88 of 206



Page 89 of 206



Page 90 of 206



Page 91 of 206



Page 92 of 206



Page 93 of 206



Page 94 of 206



Page 95 of 206



Page 96 of 206



Page 97 of 206



Page 98 of 206



Page 99 of 206



Page 100 of 206



Page 101 of 206



Page 102 of 206



Page 103 of 206



Page 104 of 206



Page 105 of 206



Page 106 of 206



Page 107 of 206



Page 108 of 206



Page 109 of 206



Page 110 of 206



Page 111 of 206



Page 112 of 206



Page 113 of 206



Page 114 of 206



Page 115 of 206



Page 116 of 206



Page 117 of 206



Page 118 of 206



Page 119 of 206



Page 120 of 206



Page 121 of 206



Page 122 of 206



Page 123 of 206



Page 124 of 206



Page 125 of 206



Page 126 of 206



Page 127 of 206



Page 128 of 206



Page 129 of 206



Page 130 of 206



Page 131 of 206



Page 132 of 206



Page 133 of 206



Page 134 of 206



Page 135 of 206



Page 136 of 206



Page 137 of 206



Page 138 of 206



Page 139 of 206



Page 140 of 206



Page 141 of 206



Page 142 of 206



Page 143 of 206



Page 144 of 206



Page 145 of 206



Page 146 of 206



Page 147 of 206



Page 148 of 206



Page 149 of 206



Page 150 of 206



Page 151 of 206



Page 152 of 206



Page 153 of 206



Page 154 of 206



Page 155 of 206



Page 156 of 206



Page 157 of 206



Page 158 of 206



Page 159 of 206



Page 160 of 206



Page 161 of 206



Page 162 of 206



Page 163 of 206



Page 164 of 206



Page 165 of 206



Page 166 of 206



Page 167 of 206



Page 168 of 206



Page 169 of 206



Page 170 of 206



Page 171 of 206



Page 172 of 206



Page 173 of 206



Page 174 of 206



Page 175 of 206



Page 176 of 206



Page 177 of 206



Page 178 of 206



Page 179 of 206



Page 180 of 206



Page 181 of 206



Page 182 of 206



Page 183 of 206



Page 184 of 206



Page 185 of 206



Page 186 of 206



Page 187 of 206



Page 188 of 206



Page 189 of 206



Page 190 of 206



Page 191 of 206



Page 192 of 206



Page 193 of 206



Page 194 of 206



Page 195 of 206



Page 196 of 206



Page 197 of 206



Page 198 of 206



Page 199 of 206



Page 200 of 206



Page 201 of 206



Page 202 of 206



 

  

General Manager’s 
Report 

 

DATE SUBMITTED:  February 8, 2024 MEETING DATE: February 14, 2024 

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS FROM:  Justin Clary, General Manager 

GENERAL MANAGER APPROVAL 
 

ATTACHED DOCUMENTS 
1. General Manager’s Report 
2.  

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED 
RESOLUTION 

 
 

FORMAL ACTION/ 
MOTION 

 

INFORMATIONA
L/OTHER 

 

 
BACKGROUND / EXPLANATION OF IMPACT 
Updated information from the General Manager in advance of the Board meeting. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
None.  
 
RECOMMENDED BOARD ACTION 
None required. 
 
PROPOSED MOTION 
None. 

AGENDA 
BILL 

Item 8.A 

Page 203 of 206



General Manager’s Report Page 1 
Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District 

 

 
LAKE WHATCOM WATER AND SEWER DISTRICT 

General Manager’s Report 
Upcoming Dates & Announcements 

Regular Meeting – Wednesday, February 14, 2024 – 6:30 p.m. 

Important Upcoming Dates 

Lake Whatcom Water & Sewer District 
Regular Board Meeting Wed Feb 28, 2024 8:00 a.m. Board Room/Hybrid 

Employee Staff Meeting Thu Feb 15, 2024 8:00 a.m. Board Room/Hybrid 
Commissioner Holland to attend 

Investment Comm. Meeting Wed Feb 28, 2024 10:00 a.m. Board Room/Hybrid 
Safety Committee Meeting Thur Feb 22, 2024 8:00 a.m. Board Room 
Lake Whatcom Management Program 

Policy Group Meeting Wed Jun 5, 2024 3:00 p.m. City of Bellingham Pacific St Ops 
Center, Rm 111/Hybrid 

Joint Councils Meeting Wed Mar 27, 2024 6:30 p.m. Bellingham City Council 
Chambers, 210 Lottie Street 

Other Meetings 

WASWD Section III Meeting Tue Feb 13, 2024 6:00 p.m. Bob’s Burgers 
8822 Quil Ceda Pkwy, Tulalip, WA 

Whatcom Water Districts 
Caucus Meeting Wed Feb 21, 2024 2:00 p.m. Remote Attendance 

Whatcom County Council of 
Governments Board Meeting Wed May 8, 2024 3:00 p.m. Council of Governments Offices 

314 E Champion Street/Hybrid 

Committee Meeting Reports 

Safety Committee: 
➢ No committee meeting has been held since the last board meeting. 

Investment Committee: 
➢ No committee meeting has been held since the last board meeting. 

Upcoming Board Meeting Topics 

➢ Whatcom County onsite sewage system compliance monitoring program presentation 
➢ Whatcom County comprehensive plan update comments 
➢ Effective Utility Management assessment work session 
➢ SVWTP chlorine contact basin design/permitting contract award 
➢ Division 7 reservoir replacement project construction contract award 
➢ Rate modeling software discussion 
➢ Euclid sewer lift station improvements project contract closeout 
➢ Facility security assessment presentation   

Page 204 of 206



General Manager’s Report Page 2 
Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District 

2024 Initiatives Status 

Administration and Operations 

Strategic Planning 
➢ Conduct the AWWA Effective Utility Management (EUM) assessment process, which will 

inform the next revision to the six-year strategic business plan. 
District management, and staff completed the EUM assessment process on January 23 and 
29, respectively. The board is scheduled to undergo the assessment process March 13. 
Following discussion of assessment results with the board, District staff will update the six-
year strategic business plan. 

Collective Bargaining Agreement 
➢ Negotiate a successor agreement with AFSCME Local 114WD by December 31, 2024. 

The District, with AFSCME input, has contracted NW Management Services to assist in the 
completion of a total compensation study, which will be completed in Spring 2024 to inform 
a critical component of agreement negotiations with AFSCME in Summer/Fall 2024. 

Management Team Support 
➢ With the 2022 and 2023 departures of the District’s O&M Manager and Engineering 

Manager, respectively, devote time to coordinating and assisting Mr. Dahlstrom and Mr. 
Nicoll in their relatively new roles. 
Monthly one-on-one check-in meetings are scheduled throughout 2024; both J Dahlstrom 
and G Nicoll are considering applicable leadership/management training opportunities (in 
addition to J Dahlstrom’s participation in the yearlong APWA emerging leaders academy). 

Water Right Adjudication 
➢ Represent the District in the water right adjudication process to ensure that its certificated 

and permitted rights are protected. 
The Department of Ecology plans to file for adjudication in Spring 2024; J Clary continues to 
monitor the status and attend associated webinars/meetings (the most recent of which was 
held on January 31). 

Records Management System 
➢ Implement new records management system. 

The District executed a personal services agreement in December 2023 for purchase and 
implementation of the selected enterprise content management (ECM) system (Laserfiche); 
conversion to the new system is anticipated to be complete Spring 2024. 

Safety Program Update 
➢ Continue systematic review and revision of District’s safety programs by updating eight 

programs in 2024. 
Staff is finalizing review of the wildfire smoke safety program. 

Capital Improvement Program Support 
➢ Support the Engineering Department through management of specific capital improvement 

project(s). 
Due to workload issues within the Engineering Department, J Clary has taken on a support 
role (either in the form of project manager or providing technical support) for several District 
capital improvement projects. 

  

Page 205 of 206



General Manager’s Report Page 3 
Lake Whatcom Water and Sewer District 

Emergency Response/System Security 

Emergency Readiness 
➢ Continue use of Whatcom County Department of Emergency Management services to hold 

tabletop and/or field emergency response field exercises. 
To be scheduled for 2024. Note—with the retirements of Whatcom County Sheriff and 
Emergency Management Department Manager, the District will assess the effectiveness of 
the final year of the existing contract with Whatcom County throughout 2024. 

Business Continuity Plan 
➢ Finalize a District-specific business continuity plan following FEMA guidance that leads 

District transition from emergency response (District Emergency Response Plan) to return 
to normal operation following a disruptive event. 
A draft of the plan is complete, with exception to identifying all essential District records 
and their location to ensure access throughout recovery from a disruptive event. 

Community/Public Relations 

General 
➢ Website 

The District’s web content is reviewed and updated on a regular basis. 
➢ Social Media 

Posts are made to District Facebook, LinkedIn, and Nextdoor pages regularly; Nextdoor is 
also regularly monitored for District-related posts. 

➢ Press Releases 
None to-date; press releases will be issued based upon need. 

Intergovernmental Relations 
➢ J Clary attended a WRIA 1 water rights adjudication webinar on January 31. 
➢ J Clary met (virtual) with Representative Alicia Rule on February 5. 
➢ J Clary attended the WASWD quarterly general managers’ meeting (virtual) on February 6. 
➢ J Clary, G Nicoll, and J Dahlstrom met with the Sudden Valley Community Association 

management team on January 22 to coordinate upcoming projects of each agency. 
➢ J Clary scheduled to attend the WASWD Section III meeting in Marysville on February 13. 

Lake Whatcom Water Quality 

Lake Whatcom Management Program 
➢ Participate in meetings of Lake Whatcom Management Program partners. 

J Clary attended the Policy Group meeting on February 7 and Data Group meeting on 
February 8. 

Page 206 of 206


	0 Meeting Access Information
	1 Agenda
	5 Consent Agenda
	5.1 Minutes for the January 31, 2024 Regular Board Meeting
	5.2 Payroll & Benefits
	6.A. Comp Plan Update
	6.A.1 Comp Plan - Land Use
	6.A.2 Comp Plan - Capital Facilities
	6.A.3 Comp Plan - Utilities
	6.A.4 Comp Plan - Environment
	8.A. Managers Report
	8.A.1 General Manager's Report

